AGENDA FOR THE MEETING OF THE GOVERNING BOARD OF
THE SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
July 9, 2013
Immediately following the 6:00 pm meeting of the Sierra County Board of Education
Sierra County Office of Education
109 Beckwith Road, Loyalton, California

This meeting will NOT be available for videoconferencing at Downieville School, Downieville, CA

Any individual who requires disability-refated accommodations or modifications including auxiliary aids and services in
order to participate in the Board meeting should contact the Superintendent or designee in writing.

Public inspection of agenda documents that are distributed (o the Board less than 72 hours before the meeting, will be made
available at Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District, 109 Beckwith Road, Room 3, Loyalton, CA, 96718, and posfed with the

A

B.

C.

D.

online agenda at http://www. sierracountyofficeofeducation.org (Government Code 54957.5)

. CALL TO ORDER
(Please be advised that this meeting will be recorded.)

ROLL CALL

APPROVAL OF AGENDA
INFORMATION/DISCUSSION ITEMS
1. Correspondence

2. Superintendent’'s Report {position vacant)
a. Inter-District Attendance Agreements as follows: (**under separate cover)

New/Renewal | School Grade District of Receiving
Year: Entering Residence District
New 2013-14 K Sierra Tahoe/Truckee

3. Business Report

a. Board Report-Expenditures by Object 7/1/12 to 6/30/13**

b. Tenth Month Enroliments for the 2012-2013 School Year**

c. Facilities
i. Pliocene Ridge School escrow, 1999 Ridge Road, San Juan, CA
i. Loyalton High School Re-roof project
ili. Loyalton Middle School Restroom project (805 School Street)
iv. Loyalton Middle School Building Use(605 School Street)

4. Staff Reporis (5 minutes)
5. SPTA Report (5 minutes)
6. Board Members’ Report {5 minutes)

7. Public Comment —This is an opportunity for members of the public to directly address the
governing board on any item of interest that is within the subject matter jurisdiction of the governing
board whether or not it is listed on the agenda. Five minutes may be allotted to each speaker and



Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District
Governing Board Agenda
July 9, 2013

a maximum of twenty minutes to each subject matter. (Education Code 35145.5; Bylaw 9322;
Government Code 54954.3) :

E. CONSENT CALENDAR

1. Approval of the minutes of the Regular Board meeting held June 19, 2013**

2. Approval of the bill warrants for the month of June 2013**

3. Approval of Quarterly Report on Williams Uniform Complaints for quarter
ending June 30, 2013. It is required per Education Code 35186 section (d) that
a schoof district shall report summarized data on the nature and resolution of
all complaints on a quarterly basis to the county superintendent of schools and
the governing board of the school district. No complaints regarding textbooks
and instructional materials, teacher vacancy or misassignment or conditions of
facilities were filed with Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified Schoof District during the
2012-2013 schoo! year.

4. Appointment of Barbara Jaquez as 2013-2014 Response to Intervention
Coordinator, Loyalton Ji/Sr High School

F. ACTION ITEMS
NEW BUSINESS
1314-01 Confidential Employees’ Response to Employer's 2013-2014 Proposal*”

1314-02 Notice of Resignation from Suzi Pangman, School Secretary, Downieville School,
effective July 1, 2013 (*under separate cover) '

1314-03 Authorization to fill School Secretary position, Downieville School, 5 hrs. daily

1314-04 Authorization to hire .05 FTE (1 section, 1 semester) certificated Career
Exploration teacher, Loyalton Jr/Sr High School Grades 7-9; funded by Feather
River College.

1314-05 Authorization to hire .12 FTE (1 section, 2 semesters) certificated Music teacher,
Loyalton High School; funded by Sierra Schools Foundation. =

1314-06 Sierra County Office of Education Board President to act as interim signature
authority for Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified Schooi District Warrants

1314-07 Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District Governing Board President to act as
interim signature authority for Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District, with
the exception of Warrants

1314-08 Appointment of no more than two Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District
employees as Interim signature authorities to sign general operations documents

1314-09 Response to Grand Jury Report™ htp:/www.sierracounty ca gov/DocumentCenter/View/431 )
i. District Superintendent
ii. Board of Education
jii. Public Comment

SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DASTRICT
Agenda

2



Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District
Governing Board Agenda
July 9, 2013

1314-10

1314-11

1314-12
1314-13
1314-14
1314-15

1314-16

1314-17

Randy Hill Construction (Loyalton High School Re-roof Project) change orders *

Randy Hill Construction (Loyalton High School Re-roof Project) Lease LeaseBack
Agreement*

Loyalton Jr/Sr High School Fire Alarm System Contract”
Nominate Two Board Members to Facility Committee
Nominate Two Board Members to Negotiations Committee
Nominate Two Board Members to Transportation Committee

Resolution 13-001, Health and Welfare Board Member Benefit, Medicare
Reimbursement®

Revision of Board Bylaw 9250, Remuneration, Reimbursement and Other
Benefits** (Draft)

G. ADVANCED PLANNING

1. Next Regular Board Meeting will be held on Tuesday, August 13, 2013, at the
Downieville School, Downieville, California, following the 6:00 pm meeting of the
Sierra County Board of Education.

2. A Special Board Meeting to conduct interviews for the Superintendent position will
be held on July 10, 2013, at Sierra County Office of Education, 109 Beckwith
Road, Room 4, Loyalton, California, at 9:00 am.

3. Suggested Agenda items

y
Mchod: P,
Michael Moore, President
“*enclosed
*handout

ACounty agenda backup

SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
Agenda

3






ENROLLMENT BY SCHOOL MONTH
2012-2013

Loyaiton Loyalton Loyaiton Downieville Downieville Sierra Long Term

Elementary  Middle High Elementary Jr/SrHigh Pass Cont ISP TOTAL
Ending2011-2012 | 172 | 53 | 105 | 29 | 24 6 | 3 392
1st Day 2012-2013 158 54 113 27 26 3 8 389
2012 CBEDS 159 53 104 28 24 5 0 373
Month
September 1 161 54 110 28 24 6 5 388
October 2 159 53 108 29 24 6 5 382
November 3 157 50 105 28 25 9 8 382
December 4 162 51 106 28 25 8 7 387
January 5 163 53 105 30 26 9 8 304
February 6 163 49 108 30 26 10 11 397
March 7 160 49 108 30 26 9 12 304
April 3 161 48 108 30 27 7 11 302
May 9 162 45 109 30 26 9 12 303
June 10 162 45 109 30 26 8 12 392
S-PJUSD SDC  Opportunity Washoe Cnty

P-1 ADA 361.62 0 1.83 16.21

P-2 ADA 363.89 0.18 1.87 16.04

Annual ADA

Enroliment difference from June 2012 to
tenth school month ending June 7, 2013: 0

. 2011-2012 P1 ADA = 389.34
| 2011-2012 P2 ADA= 382.81
. 2011-2012 Annual ADA = 380.57

doc/Attendance 2012-2013 /Board Summary 2012-2013

Prepared by sroberts 7/2/2013 Page 1






191310 [00YDS POYIUN JUIO SEWN|J-BLIS - 900

WYLLE £L0Z € unr (DNIMLNIAT) Builiuap [2HneT Joj pejessusas

£ 40 | ebeg TN = 29EeIg 9bed '| = SUBIQ 190 ¥ = W] [0 ‘N = ¢¥esig ebed pund ‘N = ¢Pund SOVS Ll = 1280 TL0 = pund 'A = ¢SI00Y pelolsey .
1 ‘N = £SSUIIGEN} pUe S18ssy ‘N = (STF peisodun 'L} = poad ‘E107 = J8SA 120SI4 'N = BUINO/SUINO 9 = 610) 'suoissiwieg 103 Aq pas)lld  uoldelag
0Z'556 6£°029'L 1eLe'ay 00°046'05 00'09Z'6 S ECT 0Lt
zrozT'ey L5'9ZZ'9L0'L LE616'96 00'96£°951°L 00'EOF'S6L'L 000¢g 109190 10} (230 L
Simve T 504 PaUISSEID ‘SHOUSE JBUIO 2068
. d-peiesyiiag. 'seued JSUI0 LOBE. .

8E°20L _wm.mmo.m palsse|g-uononpay Si3d Z088
16'62 $0°00L peleoyIe-UoIoNPaY SY3d LOSE
49087 sse|D siysuag dsalley Z048
F 00090 ) . “Hag) sjausd sauney L0LE.
£9'642'SE 06°195'¢ ,mo.wohoq JURINSU| UOYESUSGLICT) SIENIOM zZoos
GZ'ESO'L pg'Leg'le G6'6¥9'S 00'LEs' L8 0022166 DUBJNSL| UOHESUBAWOD) SISHICM L09E
ALY 0g's2.L 00'L8Z'8 Q06228 -aoueINsy| Jusweiodwaur s1elg zose
3 gzeslly 0O'E6Z LT . 1. 00°668°0C gresueinsy] swifojdwaun s1eg LOSE.
; 9L LoK'eL 00 ¥ZE'6L L 00'066'€3) Od paYISSeID-I8)@M B WiieaH zove
-L'ZrL'S 9/°6vE'8% 00°0Z1'E8E 00 1 450BE pelEoyan- SIBiaM ' HIledH LOYE
BE'P¥6 00'008'01 00'0L9°0) SUOISO PoYISseD-8IedIpaly ZZEE
el 31t DO'GTe'sZ 00:0FF'5Z UGHISOd PAYESHINS)-BIEIIPBIN 1288
sZ'seL) 0o L0L'SY 00'7E6' Y SUOWISOd PRYISSEID-IISYO 21LEE
0g0sLL 00595’ 00'¥90'e suonised pateIilastaSYo LIES
00'Z 00°'299'6 00 ¥88'Z4 afoidw payisse|D-dmidid sied zLze
. . 00'9b5'99 . . DOBSTER., . fg awsinoy seakorhul olgnd zoze
26°4PL 00'899'S 00'660'9 Ag ewaey seaiojdwi aldand L0ZE
00°9€S 00'9€5 00°6Z8 1543 JaWaIaY SIeudEs | BEIS zole
Ligs ¥L'8¥2'0Z) 58'895'Z1 00 L6S'EEL 00'68F'SEL 1843 Juawaimey sIBYOE ) SlelS LOLE
Y5615 LE 85°¢L2'6v9 82'086'G9 00'vLLAVL 00°69¥ L 0002 328lgo 1oy B0
-LLGE 25°668'8L £1°961°C 00°090°2¢ 0050672 SelB[ES PaUISSEID JAUYIO 0062
€T yer'L ¥r'B5E'LLE ££'928'€T 00'0LL'ErE 00'€99°£92 SBUBlES B0 7 [BOUBLD 00¥Z
DB09E, gyl : 00'SY8'L 00 x Sale|ES UILIPY/ANG PoWSsRIO 00EZ.
A d 85°£96'81 00'v96'8L ainsang Hoddng payIsse|D 0z2e
98'Z80'62 #1'650°082 00'8gs'te 00'089'08E 00°208'¥ZE saueleg Hoddng payisse|) 0oze
¥LLBY $8'905'ZLL Troze'll 0usLLLEL 00°66€'4Z1L salle|2g Sepiy [RUORINISU| 0012
]om.ﬁm.ﬂ 16'G8L LS L 6wzLs'eol 00°2E0°0EL'L 00°9PZ 09L'} 0001 129(40 40 1BjO L
00" 00’7458 00'6rL'8 s8LE[RS PBIBOLILISD BUID 008
-./0070007 .00'000'glL. 00°000'81 Jayoes | pesp/ebleud Ul Jaysea) CLEL
Ay 90'ZoL'9sz 9t 482'€Z DO 6Py B2 00°209'282 eleg uwpy/aedng pigoliled noElL
00°DEE'0Z 00 0FE'62Z 00°0£9'6F 00°892'0F seINYEaNS pajedYIIeD 0ZhL
-82'050'E SEYZ8'8ee’L £6'025'851 Q0'SPEFLE L 00" 225'0LF L SOME|ES SiByoRa |, 00L )
Q4 [ed9ue9 - |0 pund
saueleq: . v e tuesoo L , wbpng ebpng
Jinogioy: P @.:«_._.u:wjx.m_ N _"uo....on._E:u:m. . posinoy ik .zw«nov< uonduasag 10940

€LIZ10T 123 |edsid

sougjeg-Arewiwng 19alqQ junoossy

eLoieds!d

Aep ubnoiyy) sasuejeg




. ) 1ol3SI(] [00YDS payiuf Julof SEWN|4-_LI9|S - 900
WYLLE €L0Z € unr {ONITINIMT) Bulusps [sUne Joj palessuss lootos b n
(N = iveaug ebed 'L = suBig [@0 v = AT fA0 ‘N = ¢eeig ebied pund ‘N = (pund SOVS £-} =108[00 ‘L0 = pUNd "A = {8100y pejouisay .
N = 4SOnijIGer] pUE s1888Y ‘N = ¢SAF paisodun ‘1L = Pouad '£LOZ = JEBA 1BIS|S ‘N = eUPO/RUIUD '9 = 8.0) ‘suoissiula Jesn Ag palalid  UONISRS

¢ jo Z sbed
I

001526 00°182'8L elejajeD 0] pund Uso i suel] 919,
, 00199 e8e i el el und BPIE Yog evs o) ssjsuel] £194
0062 00°L26'S 40'000'9 18say % pund usg) usamieg suel] 2194
o0’ 51500 1aulpu)Hoddng pang 0LEL
00 PLL'OL 00'vLL'al 00'P65'SE UE JS00) §589X7 "UORINL B0 AW
X g4 £€8'6LZ LY . 8§LE 00°200°8F 00'ZFL06L 0009 3280 404 18301
A T mmmmhmv o .ac.mmn.m_‘ oo wswdinb3 0G¥9
BL¥PF SZLPS'08 95442 00'692°LE 00°ZPL'06) TINg 40 INFWIA0HWI Z ONIATING 00Z9
£€'G09' b LLGLZ6L L 9T'51£'82¢ 00°ZLL'GOY L 00° BT L6E°L 0005 109[q0 10} |BJOL
ooszz T 6062z 00522 SUOHEOIUNUILIOS) 1OYI0) 0665
00°00L'Z LO'68L'Z 00°008't 00008y saur L 0768
907L08G: 0ZEGEL e EBHGE, L 00THEETRL. e T o SoIias Ayuon-auoydoloL, oL6s
95°286'C Zriel's 00'520°9 00°ES8'S SUOIBOIUNWILIOY 0065
“G'90r'0L L5'625'G £0LL8F ’ asinquiizy fousieraiul 3005 6685
“££'9.5 81°158'9/2 §1°859'601 00'8Z6°L8S 00" 05'91E JIBS/SIDBLUDY SNOBUE|[20SIN 0685
i i i e VL0088 L n00'gEe - PR : lgopy Bust0l|d - Xe | Auadoly 0485
90°LEL'D ¥6°L06'S 00ELI'SL Q0'ELIGL xel SISep PHOS 0985
-00°00S 00°005'Z 00°000°G 00'900'ZL 00700021 asuadx3 Hpny 0ras
pO'6.LE (o oral 00°065'¢ ssuadx3 uepoa|3 pieog zZ18s
. 020 : S I el : : . sasuadxg |ebe _ 0185 .

LGBLSE L1BTY'SY 92" .60y 00'000°GS 00°000'eS asuadxg bBunelad § sesnes 008s
9 LLE'S ¥Z'SEL'VT 0E'E0FL 000587 Q0'ELLGE sieday ¥ 595897 'S[EUSY 0095
PESTLLL 0000551 00°006'51 SANILN SNOBUR|BISIN 0BS5S
S YZELLTY. 00'8LTEL: (1 X-7 T A L tatedrani e suedosg. 0755
-¥0'896'Fi 9.°88€'05 00°00L°YS 00°009'8% =M DESS
00'EQY'8 05'289'G 05226t 00'€96°GL Q0'ELL0T afizqies 0255
S6'619'% 80°946'99 16722102 0OvRLLE 00'4E9'LE Jamod 0155
QLT i s REGBLLT e L O0000'8R e e ODBOE'ES Ll Tl =@ Apgey.teld-sauemsy| 00FS
¥ 098 Zhere'L AR A 00°20L'9 00 LIPS diysiaquiapy g sang 008S
£5'256'42 SHESL'ET Z0SiL'L 00°162'85 00°00€"vE $93USISUOD B JBARIL 00ZS
7E'06. 91 69%'645 Z5°686'02 00'EYZ LIS 00'¥24'895 secinueg o) uswsaibeang 001G

bevep'e 0@'GlgEelL 98'99%'29 00°L£5'9¢2 00'€39'2Z04 000¥ 108lqQ so§ |30, . .
-9g°Z0v' L £y 044'09 £6°G19 vy T $ o1 dn) uewdinby [ede)-uoN (4] 474
IS'EVTE Z5080'S 16'LBY'E 00'092'6 00'005'9 SRIN TUBN 2I3BA 0SEY
LZ6LZ'8 TLL9'es 19°056'6 Q0 282°L1L 00°415'98 salddng pue sjeueiep 00E¥
¢ L L VELE e 0D00E'0LE : _ e Sjoogpe] usyl By sYood | 00Z1

_ . (panunuos}  qd (es8uag - Lo pung
souejeg Lo e . jobipng jebpng
E:oo..&q : mh:u._u:m.axw .vmmwnﬁzo:m _uwm_awm peydopy uonduoasaq 109lq0

€L/ZL0Z AROL |EDSIY . o . . - W S - . Aepy ybnoays saosuejeg

aosuejeg-fewwng 198lgo Junoaoy zl0leosid




3o3SIA [00YDS PaliUN Julof sewn|d-elals - 900
WYLL'S £L0Z € unp (ONITLNIMT) Buipusp [8lineT Jof pajeiduss

£ Jo £ abed {N = iopaig 9bed '| = SHBIQ [0 ¥ = 1190 'N = ¢Yeald aBed pund ‘N = ¢Pund SOVS 'Ll = 108[q0 "0 = pund ‘A = (5100 paloUIsay
3dv¥353 | [N = £S50IGEr] PUE SJ8SSY N = ¢STF PAISOdUN 1| = POLad ‘ELOZ = JEBA [E9SId ‘N = SUHO/RUIND 9 = BIO) 'SUCISSIlie JoSN Aq paidtld  UORISISS
1
oL ZsT'ivy 80°0£2'208't Z8°Z95'219 00'5P5 L98'S 00°966'L05'G sjunoaae asuadx3 pue L) punyg ‘ag) B0 104 2301
0L'ZST'Lvy 80T0ELZOR'Y TB'LIS'LE9 00595 298°G 00°956°205°S sjunosoe ssuadx3g Joj |ejoL
96°289'66Z ¥0'L66'781 00’ 00°989'r8Y 00'SL3'ELL 000Z 53[0 104 [e3oL
{panuyuod} Qg4 jessuss - LQ pund
-poueeqg’ . jaBpng jabpng
S . alnjipuadx Iaquunau : uopduoss aall
JUNo2oYy He 3 pateq .m_ posIADYN paydopy y a 120

ELIZL0T 1234 jeosly Kepy ybnoay) sasueey

asuejeg-Alewwng 192{qQ UNoodYy e Qleasid






MINUTES FOR THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE GOVERNING BOARD OF
THE SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
June 18, 2013
Downieville School, Downieville, California

A. CALL TO ORDER
President Mike Moore called the meeting to order at 6: 52 pm.
B. ROLL CALL

PRESENT: Mr. Mike Moore, President
Mr. Tim Driscoll, Vice President
Ms. Sharon Dryden, Clerk
Ms. Patty Hall, Member
Mr. Allen Wright, Member

ABSENT: None
VACANT: Nona

STAFF: Mr. Stan Hardeman, Superintendent
: Ms. Rose Asquith, Business Manager
Ms. Hannah Tomatis, Administrative Assistant
Ms. Marla Stock, Site Administrator — Via Videoconference
Ms. Derek Cooper, Site Administrator
Ms. Marfene Mongolo, SELPA Director

- C. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA
MSCU/HALL/WRIGHT

D. INFORMATION / DISCUSSION ITEMS
1. SUPERINTENDENT’S REPORT

a. Mr. Hardeman reported on the Senior Projects, FFA Banquet and Graduation
Ceremonies

b. The LHS roof replacement is encountering some delays, but continues to proceed.
¢. The Pliocene Ridge School property sale is proceeding with preliminary inspections.

2. BUSINESS REPORT

Board Report-Expenditures by Object 7/01/12 to 5/31/13
Ninth Month Enroliments for the 2012-2013 School Year
Update to Board on waste mgmt program per BP 3511.1

®o0TD

Plumas Joint Unified School District
There were no comments

2012-13 Second Interim Report Letter from the California Department of Education
Michael Moore, Beard President, to act as interim signature authority for Sierra-

Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District



Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District
Minutes of the School District Governing Board
Regular Meeting

June 19, 2013

3. STAFF REPORTS

Marla Stock, Loyalton Migh School Administrator and Derek Cooper, Loyalton Elementary
and Middle School and Downievitle School Administrator gave updates on their sites.

. SPTA REPORTS

There were no reports.

. BOARD MEMBERS’ REPORTS

WRIGHT: Expressed appreciation for students’ Senior Projects and reported on Downieville
Graduation.

DRISCOLL; Reported that the Loyalten High School roof project is progressing.

. PUBLIC COMMENT

President Moore opened the meeting for public comment at 7:G7 pm.

'‘Bernadette Manning, employee, expressed her plea for the Board to consider favorably ltem

W

g" {Action ltems) on the agenda. She said that her custodial position has been eliminated and
wants to know who is going to keep the school clean during the school year.

Steve Folsom, parent, expressed his concern that administrative oversight in Downieville has
become a real issue with the current climate. A teacher in charge ist't enough; the teachers
cannot oversee everything because they are in the classroom. What kind of safeguards and
direction will be given to the principal and new superintendent in regard to the supervision

issue? Concern was expressed for a stable student population and avoiding a downward
trend for the school.

President Moore closed the meeting for public comment at 7:11 pm.

E. CONSENT CALENDAR

The following items were included on the consent calendar:

OO W

Approval of the minutes of the Regular Board meeting held May 14, 2013

Approval of the minutes of the Special Board meeting held May 29, 2013

Approval of the bill warrants for the month of May 2013

Authorization to submit the Consolidated Application for Funding, 201 3 14
Appointment of personnel to fill 2013-2014 Exira Duty Assighments

Assignment of Juan Lopez-Martinez, custodian, Loyaiton Schools, (1.0 FTE), effective
July 1, 2013

MSCUMRIGHT/HALL.

Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District 2
Minutes



Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District
Minutes of the School District Governing Board
Regular Meeting

June 19, 2013

F. ACTIONITEMS

1.

a.

OLD BUSINESS

Home-To-School Transportation Services, 2013-14 school year, Loyalton Schools The
Transportation Committee (MOORE) reported that the committee met and discussed the
options. The Committee makes a recommendation to make an offer of a one year contract
to White's Transportation. '

MSCU/DRYDEN motioned to renew the contract for $475,000 for one year. Terms and
conditions in the contract remain the same. WRIGHT seconded.

TRUSTEE DRISCOLL AYE
TRUSTEE DRYDEN AYE
TRUSTEE HALL AYE
TRUSTEE WRIGHT AYE
TRUSTEE MOORE AYE
5/0

NEW BUSINESS

Employer Responsé to Confidential Employees’ Proposal, 2013-2014
MSCU/DRYDEN/WRIGHT

TRUSTEE DRISCOLL AYE
TRUSTEE DRYDEN AYE
TRUSTEE HALL AYE
TRUSTEE WRIGHT AYE
TRUSTEE MOORE AYE
5/0

Acceptance notice of resignation from Margaret Daigle, Instructional Aide and Library Aide,
(3.5 hours daily) Downieville School, effective June 7, 2013
MSCU/DRISCOLL/ WRIGHT

TRUSTEE DRISCOLL AYE
TRUSTEE DRYDEN AYE
TRUSTEE HALL AYE
TRUSTEE WRIGHT AYE
TRUSTEE MOORE AYE
5/0

Acceptance of notice of resignation from Judith Hall, Title | (4 hours daily) and EIA/ELL Instructional
Aide (35 minutes daily), Loyalton High School, effective June 7, 2013

MSCUMWRIGHT/DRISCOLL
TRUSTEE DRISCOLL AYE
TRUSTEE DRYDEN AYE
TRUSTEE HALL AYE
TRUSTEE WRIGHT AYE
TRUSTEE MOORE AYE
5/0

Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District 3
Minutes



Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District
Minutes of the School District Governing Board

Regular Meeting
June 19, 2013

d.

Acceptance of notice of resignation from Sarai Mendoza, Noon Supervision (40 minutes

daily), Loyalton High School, effective June 7, 2013

MSCU/DRISCOLLMWRIGHT
TRUSTEE DRISCOLL
TRUSTEE DRYDEN
TRUSTEE HALL
TRUSTEE WRIGHT
TRUSTEE MOORE

5/0

AYE
AYE
AYE
AYE
AYE

Extend 1.5 FTE custodian pesitions layoff date from June 30, 2013, to August 30, 2013

MSCU/DRYDEN/DRISCOLL
TRUSTEE DRISCOLL
TRUSTEE DRYDEN
TRUSTEE HALL

TRUSTEE WRIGHT
TRUSTEE MOORE

5/0

AYE
AYE
AYE
AYE
AYE

Katie Campbell and Jason Perry designated 2013-2014 California Interscholastic

Federation representatives for the league

MSCUMRIGHT/HALL
TRUSTEE DRISCOLL
TRUSTEE DRYDEN
TRUSTEE HALL
TRUSTEE WRIGHT
TRUSTEE MOORE
5/0

Board Meeting Calendar Revision due to address change

MSCU/MHALL/DRISCOLL

AYE
AYE
AYE
AYE
AYE

Revision to 2013-14 School Calendar(changing iength of 9" school month)

MSCU/HALL/WRIGHT

Donation of Coronado cultured stone from Basalite Concrete Products (Stock)
MSCU/DRYDEN motioned to accept and to send a letter of appreciation. Driscoll seconded.

TRUSTEE DRISCOLL
TRUSTEE DRYDEN
TRUSTEE HALL
TRUSTEE WRIGHT
TRUSTEE MOORE
5/0

AYE
AYE
AYE
AYE
AYE

Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District
Minutes

4



Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District
Minutes of the School District Governing Beard
Regular Meeting

June 19, 2013

j.  Ford/Super Club Wagon 3D rebid, minimum required
MSCU/HALL motioned to accept the bid. DRISCOLL seconded.

TRUSTEE DRISCOLL AYE
TRUSTEE DRYDEN AYE
TRUSTEE HALL AYE
TRUSTEE WRIGHT AYE
TRUSTEE MOORE AYE
5/0

k. The Public Hearing to receive comments regarding the 2013-2014 Sierra-Plumas Joint
Unified School District proposed budget, pursuant to Ed Code §42103, 42122, 42123, and
42127 opened at 7:32 pm.

|, Adoption of 2013-2014 Budget and Criteria & Standards Report
MSCU/MWRIGHT motioned to adopted with the inclusion of the anticipated revenue from
the sale of the Pliocene Property.

HALL seconded.

TRUSTEE DRISCOLL AYE
TRUSTEE DRYDEN AYE
TRUSTEE HALL AYE
TRUSTEE WRIGHT AYE
TRUSTEE MOORE AYE
510

BOARD POLICIES AND ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATIONS
m. Board Policy 5030, Student Welliness

n. Board Policy 5131.2, Bullying

0. Board Policy 5145.3, Nondiscrimination/Harassment
p. . Exhibit 5145.6, Parental Notifications

q.  Board Policy 6112, School Day

r.- Administrative Regulation 6112, School Day

s. Board Policy 6159.2, Nonpublic, Nonsectarian School and Agency Services for
Special Education

t. Administrative Regulation 6159.2, Nonpublic, Nonsectarian School and Agency
Services for Special Education

u. Board Policy 6163.1, Library Media Centers
v. Board Policy 6164.8, ldentification and Education Under Section 504

W, Administrative Regulation 6164.6, |dentification and Education Under Section 50

Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School Dis’trict5
Minutes



Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District

Minutes of the School District Governing Board

Regular Meeting
June 19, 2013

Administrative Regulation TO DELETE:

X. Administrative Regulation 5148, Child Care and Development
WRIGHT motioned to approve items m through x. DRISCOLL seconded.

TRUSTEE DRISCOILL
TRUSTEE DRYDEN
TRUSTEE HALL
TRUSTEE WRIGHT
TRUSTEE MOORE
5/0

G. PUBLIC COMMENT

AYE
AYE
AYE
AYE
AYE

The meeting for any public comments regarding the following Closed Session items:

1. Government Code §54957, Public Employment, Superintendent Search Committee

Candidate Interview Recommendations

H. CLOSED SESSION

The Board of Trustees moved into Closed Session to consider the preceding item.

RETURN TO OPEN SESSION

L REPORT CUT

MOORE reported that all candidate applications were reviewed. Interviews will be offered to
six candidates. A Special Meeting will be set for July 10, 2013, 9 a. m, Sierra County Office
of Education, 109 Beckwith Road, Loyalton, CA. for the interviews.

J. ADVANCED PLANNING

1.  Next Regular Board I\/Ieeting' will be held on Tuesday, July 9, 2013, at Sierra-Plumas Joint
Unified School District Office, Room 4, 108 Beckwith Road, Loyalton, California, following the

6:00 pm meeting of the Sierra County Board of Education.

2. Suggested Agenda items;
a.
K. ADJOURNMENT

MSCU/DRISCOLL/HALL
ADJOURNED at 8:57pm.

Sharon Dryden, Clerk

Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District 6
Minutes



ReqPay12a Board Report

Checks Dated 05/01/2013 through 05/31/2013

T Date " R ZOb) qrioun
00078407 05/03/2013  ALICIA SCHOFIELD 01-5200 47.07
00078408 05/08/2013  ATS&T 01-5899 60.79

01-5910 18236 243,15
00078409 05/08/2013 B & C TRUEVALUE HOME CENTER 01-4300 357.87
00078410 05/08/2013  CITY OF LOYALTON 01-5530 4,658.00
00078411 05/08/2013 GOLD COUNTRY DISTRIBUTORS 13-4700 157.11
00078412 05/08/2013 RICHARD GONZALEZ & ASSOC. 01-5890 93.75
Q0078413 08/08/2013 HAWS, THEOBALD & AUMAN PC 01-6840 1,250.00
00078414 05/08/2013  INLAND SUPPLY 01-4300 216.39
00078415 05/08/2013 K 12 MANAGEMENT 01-5890 2,390.00
00078416 05/08/2013  MARIAN LAVEZZOLA 01-5600 200.00
00078417 05/08/2013 LIBERTY UTILITIES 01-5510 4,210.90
00078418 05/08/2013 MODEL DAIRY, LLC 13-4700 316.35
00078419 05/08/2013  MOUNTAIN MESSENGER 01-5890 50.00
00078420 05/08/2013  NICHOLS, MELBURG & ROSSETTO 35-6200 4,628.65

00078421 05/08/2013 CRM GROUP 35-6200 2,223.00
00078422 05/08/2013  PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY 01-5510 21.89
00078423 08/08/2013  SIERRA COUNTY PUBLIC WORKS 01-5890 235.62
00078424 05/08/2013 SIERRA COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT  01-5510 289.50

13-5200 126.00 415.50

00078425 05/08/2013  SIERRA DISPOSAL 01-5520 510.00

01-5899 10.00 520.00

00078426 05/08/2013  SIERRA HARDWARE 01-4300 , 117.51

00078427 05/08/2013 SIERRA VALLEY HOME CENTER 01-4300 1,164.65

01-5899 88.66 1,253.31
00078428 05/08/2013  SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED 13-4300 75.49

13-5800 15.67 91.16

00078429 05/08/2013 SIERRA MOTOR CO.,LLC 01-5890 0.00
00078430 05/08/2013  SIERRA TRANSPORTATION COMPANY, 01-8100 12,429.76

LLc :
01-5800 2,222.08 14,651.84

00078431 05/08/2013 SLOSSON EDUCATION PUBL INC. 01-4300 219.08
00078432 05/8/2013  STAPLES CONTRACT & COMM. 01-4300 161.24
00078433 05/08/2013 SUBURBAN PROPANE 01-8540 5,339.25

01-5899 556.01 5,895.26

00078434 05/08/2013 CATA 01-5200 327.00
00078435 05/08/2013  TIP INC..PRINTING & GRAPHIX 01-4300 510.63
00078436 05/08/2013  TRI COUNTY SCHOOLS INS. GR. 01-3901 1,005.38

’ 01-3902 2,306.74

01-9535 12,473.88

76-9576 57,679.88 73,465.88
00078437 05/08/2013  U.S. BANK 01-4300 75.24

01-5899 ' 59.99 135.23
00078438 05/08/2013 US FOODSERVICE, INC. 13-4300 240.20

13-4700 1,898.83 2,139.03

00078439 05/08/2013  ALLEN WRIGHT 01-5200 21.19
00078440 05/23/2013  AIRGAS, USA, LLC 01-5600 84.00

The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization
of the Board of Trustees. Itis recommended that the preceding Checks be approved. Page 10f 3
006 - Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School Generated for Lauriel Wentling (LWENTLING), Jun 3 2013 B8:13AM
District




RegPay1 2a Board Report

Checks Dated 05/0
RO

R O A

: e i
40078441 05/23/2013 CAMILLE ALFRED 04-5200 42.00
00078442 05/23/2013  AT&T 01-5890 29.26
01-5810 149.78 179.04
00078443 05/23/2013  AVAYA, INC 01-5600 53.16
00078444 05/23/2013 CARMICHAEL FLOOR COMPANY 01-5880 3.856.58
01-559¢ 3,856.57 7.713.15
00078445 05/23/2013 DOWNIEVILLE PUBLIC UTILITY DIS 01-5530 218.00
00078446 05/23/2013  EMPLOYMENT DEVELOPMENT 01-3502 1,074.90
DEPARTMENT
00078447 05/23/12013 GIRARD & EDWARDS ATTORNEYS AT 01-5810 784.50
LAW
00078448 05/23/2013 GOLD COUNTRY DISTRIBUTORS 13-4700 269.40
00078449 05/23/2013  STAN HARDEMAN 01-5200 124.30
00078450 05/23/2013 HOME DEPOT CREDIT SRV 01-4300 1.716.34
00078451 05/23/2013  HUNT & SONS, INC. 01-5590 558.53
00078452 05/23/2013  INLAND SUPPLY 01-4300 38.61
00078453 05/23/2013 JOSTENS 01-4300 306.16
00078454 05/23/2013 K12 INC. 01-5890 350.00
00078465 05/23/2013 MODEL DAIRY, LLC 13-4700 466,35
00078456 05/23/2013  JOANNE NUNES 01-5200 39.00
00078457 05/23/2013  PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY 01-5510 219774
00078458 05/23/2013 REED'S LOCKSMITHING, INC. 01-4300 20.44
00078459 05/23/2013 SCHOOL PATHWAYS LLC 01-5800 150.00
00078460 05/23/2013 CLAIRE SCHUMACHER 01-5200 109.63
00078461 05/23/2013 SIERRA BOOSTER 01-5890 2250
00078462 05/23/2013 ALHAMBRA 01-4300 16.37
01-5600 16.37
01-5899 10.92 43.66
00078463 05/23/2013  SIERRAVILLE PUD 01-5530 92.25 '
01-5899 30.75 123.00
00078464 05/23/2013  STAPLES CONTRACT & COMM. 01-4300 337.95
00078465 05/23/2013  TERMINIX PROCESSING CENTER 01-5890 100.00
00078466 05/23/2013  TIMBERLINE AUTO PARTS & POWER 01-4350 12,52
EQUIPMENT
00078467 05/23/2013  VERIZON WIRELESS 01-5910 199.59
00078468 05/23/2013  VOYAGER FLEET SYSTEMS INC. 01-4300 398.51
01-5200 33045 728.98
00078468 05/23/2013  WAYNE WHITE WHITE'S BUS 01-5100 107.450.00
01-5800 6,250.00 113,700.00
Total Number of Checks 63 253,098.94
Fund Summary
Fund Description Check Count Expensed Amount
01 General Fund 55 185,002.01
13 Cafeteria Fund 7 3,565.40
35 State Schoal Facility Fund 2 6,851.65
76 Warrant/Pass Though {payroll} 1 57,679.88
The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization ESCAPE
of the Board of Trustees. |t is recommended that the preceding Checks be approved. Page 2of 3
006 - Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School Generated for Lauriel Wentling (LWENTLING), Jun 3 2013 8:13AM

District




ReqPayi2a Board Report

SAmouin

tal Number of Check! 63 253,098.94
L.ess Unpaid Sales Tax Liability .00
Net {Check Amount) 253,098.94

The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District’s Policy and authorization
of the Board of Trustees. Itis recommended that the preceding Checks be approved. Page 3of 3

006 - Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School Generated for Lauriel Wentling (LWENTLING), Jun 3 2013 8:13AM
District






Sierra County
Grand Jury
Final Report
2012-2013

Presiding Judge Assist. Presiding Judge
Hon. John P. Kennelly : Hon. Charles H. Ervin

1314-09



SIERRA COUNTY GRAND [URY, 2012-2013

The 2012-2013 Sierra County grand jury began with the naming of the members and the
alternates in Downieville a little fater in the summer than most of us would recommend for the future.
Qur experience is that there is not enough time in a year to achieve what a grand jury needs to do if the
beginning is later in the year. As a result of the [ate start the grand jury training was also later in the
period than we would recommend.

Gne of the first things that became noticeable is that persans shouid not volunteer for this work
if they are not willing to commit to the service and willing to put some effort into the jury endeavor. ltis
also important that those choosing to serve not be seeking to grind axes. I a citizen wishes to gain
some understanding about how the county, city, special districts and schoal district operate, then there
is probably no better place to gain this understanding than serving on a grand jury.

This grand jury received a number of complaints from a mixture of citizens about a number of
apparent issues. In the end, the jury chose to work on four areas of local government—the operation of
the school district; the operation of the Health and Human Resources Department; perceived problems
in the operation of the building department and the enforcement of the law regarding building codes
and building permits; and finally, the law requires that each grand jury review the cperation of the
county jai.

One of the complaints involved the operation and implementation of the Sierra County Solid
Waste Fee. Upon review, it was the conclusion of the grand jury that the complaint was unfounded and
that the fee system was operating correctly under the law and the implementing county ordinance.

Two areas that we did not have time to investigate and that many felt needed this review, were,
first, the operation of the City of Loyalton and second, the transparency in the operation of the Sierra
County Waterworks District No. 1. We would recommend that the 2013-2014 grand jury look most
seriously into the operation of the City and check to make sure the special district is complying with the
Brown Act.

This jury interviewed alt the county department managers and all the members of the Board of
Supervisors. We also interviewed the Superintendent of Schools, the Finance Director of the school
district and one of the members of the school board. An attempt was made to interview Brooks
Mitchell, the Mayor of Loyaitan, but he was not willing to come fram Loyalton to Sierraville for this
interview and required that the eleven members of the grand jury go from Sierraville to Loyalton to
meet with him. It was decided that we had neither the time nor the desire to spend the taxpayers’
maney moving the meeting to Loyalton and chose not to interview this mayor. We, as noted above,
believe that the city needs to be investigated by the next grand jury.

Once these interviews were completed, four committees were appointed and assigned the job
of investigating the different areas assigned to them. The jail committee decided to actually took at all
the law enforcement facilities and we report on these. The committee locking at the schoal district was
looking at the financial operation and at the public perception that the elected board of education was
operating in secret and that decisions were being made cutside of the public meetings. The committee
looking at the Health and Human Resources Department focused on the concerns amang county
employees that there is no place to take work place problems since the department manager is married
to the County Auditor who is the final arbiter of such issues below a public hearing at the Board of
Supervisors. There was concern with privacy issues and confidentiality. In the case of the Building
BDepartment, the issue was that the operations here could lead to citizens having contempt for the law.
There appeared to be a situation where some complied with the law and some ignored it and even
flaunted their determination not to comply. We offer some solutions here even as the perceived
problem continues. Recently, one of the members of the Board of Supervisors menticned that they
were taking care of problems in one case. Nothing could be worse than to have the board members



SIERRA COUNTY GRAND JURY, 2012-2013

interfering with the operation of the law in these cases. It is recommended that individual members
stay out of these apparent violations of the law. -

Each of the jury members wishes to thank Judge John Kennelly and the Superior Court staff for
all their efforts to help us as we stumbled along. The Judge and the staff made alf our lives easier and
we appreciate it :

As forepersen of this Grand Sury, | can only say thank you to all the members. These people
were self starters and completely understood their obligations and the restrictions on their behavior,
particutarly the secrecy of the deliberations.

The Members of the 2012-2013 Sierra County Grand Jury

Bill Adasiewicz Pike City

Jim Loverin Long Valley (Purdy)
Anne Eldred Sierraville

Juliana Walsh Sierraville

Sandy Kendall Sattley

Dale Verner Sierra Brooks
Martin Rosen Sierra Brooks
Delores Church Sattley

Bill Copren Sattley

Respectively submitted,

William G. Copren, Forepetson

Table of Contents



SIERRA COUNTY GRAND JURY, 2012-2013

introduction

Membérs of the Grand Jury

Annual Review of Sierra County Jail and Law Enforcement Facilities
Report on the Building Department and Building Permits

Report on Addressing Employee Concerns

Report on the Sierra-Plumas loint Unified School District

Page 1
Page 2
Page 3
Page 10
Page 19

Pape 22



[« N W R SN L R S

O GO~

11
12

13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27

28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37
38

39
40

Review of Jail and Law Enforcement Facilities

SIERRA COUNTY GRAND JURY
ANNUAL REVIEW OF THE JAIL AND
LAW ENFORCEMENT FACILITIES

SUMMARY

Each year it is the obligation of the Sierra County Grand Jury to review Sierra County’s
jail. This requirement is in accordance with the state mandate of Czlifornia Penat Code
Section 919(b). Additicnally, we reviewed Sierra County’s other law enforcement
facilities.

2

BACKGROUND

Sierra County’s Sheriff’s Department provides law enforcement, emergency service,
public safety services and security for the citizens of Sierra County.

The county jail is used for people being detained while awaiting trial, those who have
been sentenced to a county jail term, and those sentenced to state prison and waiting
transfer. We are now entering a new era where state prisoners may be returned to the
county jail to finish incomplete state sentences.

Sierra County’s jail facility was added on to the county courthouse in Downieville during
the 1980s. A new sub-staiion was built in L_oyalton in 2007.

Because of'the age of the Downieville facility and the economic downturn of our county
(specifically since 2008) maintenance has been deferred and now the deficiencies are an
ongoing problem.

APPROACH
An inspection of the Downieville facility took place in August, 2012. Committee

members were accompanied on a tour of the jail facilities by Sergeant Michelle
Anderson.

An inspection of the Loyalton sub-station facility took place in September 2012 with
committee members being accompanied by Detective Mike Fisher.

Sheriff John Evans was interviewed by the entire Grand Jury on December 14, 2012
during their monthly meeting at Siefraville School, Sierraville.

DISCUSSION

Downieville Jail Facility

Sierra County Grand Jury 4



v B

33
34
35
36
37
38
39

- 40

Review of Jail and Law Enforcement Facilities

- Continual maintenance has been done on the Downieville jail facilities to address
changing county needs and to keep it in compliance with state regulations. Work
is being done in the least expensive manner. Many times this results in stopgap
measures rather than permanent solutions. Because of its age, maintenance and
repair 1s ongoing, difficult and, even with cost control in mind, very expensive.

FINDINGS

F1. There1s a continuing long-term roof water leakage problem in the county jail.

F2. The electrical power has been turned off in the holding area

because of water damage.
F3. As aresult of long-term water damage, mold exists in the holding area.
F4. The elevator structure has severe damage from the effects of both the water damage
and winter freeze/thaw cycles. It is understood that the water leakage originates at the
elevator structure. Damage increases each year. Expenses for repairs appear to increase
exponentially.

RECOMMENDATIONS

R1-4. 1t is the grand jﬁry recommendation that the board of supervisors
find funding for the repairs needed to construct a permanent solurzon to the
roof/elevator shaft leakage problem.

FINDINGS

County Facility Secunty

F5 There are jail security system improvements that have not
been completed. These improvements were started with grant money but were
not completed because costs exceeded the grant monies received. The following
systems have not been completed:
a. Intercom system
b. Video monitoring system
¢. Remote control lock system

RECOMMENDATIONS

R-5

It is the grand jury recommendation that the board of supervisors establish reporting
procedures which will ensure that future grant
projects are completed with the grant funds available.

-

Sierra County Grand Jury 5



Review of Jail and Law Enforcement Facilities

1 FINDINGS

2 F6 The following are not protected from tampering and/or contamination:

3

4 a. Radio communication towers have no anti-climb
-5 prevention devices. (Neither the tower at the
6
7
8

courthouse/jail in Downieville nor the Loyalton sub-
station is protected)

- 23

9 b. The courthouse/jail air circulation system.
10
11 ¢. The courthouse/jail facility in Downieville, and the
12 Loyalton sub-station external electrical service panels
13 and emergency generators.
14
15 _ d. Fuel oil is not security fenced.
16
17 e. The Loyalton sub-station propane tanks are not security
18 fence protected and the control covers are not locked.
19
20 f. The Loyalton sub-station has confidential records, specialized equipment,
21 weapons and munitions stored on site. The building is not protected to a level
22 sufficient for this type of storage.
24 g. Sheriff vehicles storage security is lax. In both Downieville and Loyalton
25 vehicles are parked in an area open to the public.
26
27 Recommendation
28
29 R-6  The Board of Supervisors must:
30
31 Establish a standing committee consisting of a County Supervisor, the County
32 sheriff, and a member of the Roads and Transportation Department to:
33
34 1. Prioritize completion of security structures.
35
36 2. Identify potential grant funding.
37
38 3. Supervise and direct grant-funding implementation.
39
40 The overriding goal of this working group should be to protect the public from harm
41  and protect the county assets at all of these facilities.
42
43
44

Sierra County Grand Jury .6



W00 1 Db B Lo b —

Review of Jail and Law Enforcement Facilities

FINDINGS:

F7 Sally port/exercise area at county jail in Downieville.

California Title 24, Section 1231.2.10 mandates that prisoners have an outdoor exercise
area. The regulations dictate square footage, fence height, lock system, top of fence
containment and minimum hours per week for outside exercise.

The outdoor area at Downville Jail fails to meet any of these requirements. Also this
facility is located close to a Downieville residential area. During our inspection we could
hear children playing in the nearby neighborhood. The deficiencies with the sally
port/exercise area place the general public and the county administrative personnel at
unacceptable risk.

Deficiencies noted:

a. The sally port fence height is 12 feet. The state
requirement is 15 feet.

b. There is no automatic lock system.
c. There is no top fence containment.
d. Prisoners have access to the courthouse’s main electrical service boxes.

e. The County’s administrative office windows are open to
the prisoners exercise area with no security screening.

f. The building roofline has no fencing,

Recommendation

R-7 These are long standing deficiencies that have been reported to the Board of
Supervisors by prior Grand Juries. This is a public safety issue that must be rectified for
the protection of county residents.

FINDINGS:

F8 The jail system is administrated under the authority of the sheriff’s office.

Bierra County Grand Jury 7



Sl
S0k W N

L W W W W W W WD N BN B DN BN DI DD = b bt e et ok e e 3
ggﬁgomqomhmmuo\oooqoxuuhwm'—-oxoooqoxm-hum-—

Review of Jail and Law Enforcement Facilities

F9 The jail is funded by the state, some state grants, and the Sierra County general fund

as budgeted by the Sierra County Board of Supervisors.

F10 California mandates the systems, facility, required training and manpower levels. However
this is an unfunded mandate. Ongoing operations are the responsibility of the county.

F11 The sally port does not meet California state minimum requirements. The estimated cost to

~ bring the sally port into compliance is $70,000/$90,000 dollars.

F12  California mandates two corrections officers on duty twenty four hours a day, seven days a
week. Sierra County provides the funds for this operation.

F13  Corrections officers are used in the administration of the department and for radio dispatch.

F14 When corrections officers are not available to meet the two person, twenty four hour, seven
day per week state mandate, deputy sheriffs are used as corrections officers, When law
enforcement officers are used in this manner, the patrol, investigative and protection functions of
the Sheriff’s Department are negatively impacted.

F15 The use of deputy sheriff officers as correction officers during the past three years is as
follows:

2010 ==mmeemee 78 shifts of 8 to 12 hours

2011 ~mrmmmen 182 shifts of § to 12 hours

2012 ——-meeee 46 shifts of 8 to 12 hours (Only partial year results)
(See attachment #1)

F16  Sierra County currently outsources some prisoners to Nevada County. Sierra County pays
an agreed upon cost per day for this service.

Ft7  California has four levels of county jail classifications and three short term holding
designations:

* Typel:  Holds inmates up to 96 hours

* TypelIl: Holds inmates pending arraignment, during trial, and upon sentencing.

* TypeIll: Holds only convicted, sentenced inmates.

* TypelV: A work furlough facility.

Temporary holding facility: Holds inmates up to 24 hours.

* Lockup: Locked room or secure enclosure under the control of a peace officer or
custodial officer—this is primarily for the temporary confinement of those
recently arrested.

¢ Court holding facility: This facility is located in a court house and used to hold
inmates for a court appearance and not for more than twelve hours.

Sierra County Grand Jury 8



OO ~1 Oy n B W )

[FERE TSR PO PV ST S T WS T S T PG T % T N T T N T T NG T N T N T N N T N e i i i el e

Review of Jail and Law Enforcement Facilities

Court holding facilities are a state responsibly, not subject to county funding.
F18  The Sierra County Jail was constructed as a Type I facility. However, inmates can sign a
96 hour waiver and be held in this facility for longer periods. The State of California, thus treats
the Sierra County Jail as a Type II facility.
F 19" The Hon. Van Maddox, Sierra County Auditor, has done a preliminary cost analysis of
closing the jail and contracting for jailing prisoners. He has projected an annual savings to the
county in excess of $250,000 doliars annually.

(See attachment #2)

F20 Asof June 4, 2013 it was reported to us that the State of California has now agreed to allow
the Sierra County Jail to have only one corrections officer on duty during the night hours. This
will reduce the jail costs significantly and should be taken into consideration in any decision.
RECOMMENDATIONS:
R7-19 The Sierra County Board of Supervisors must:

1. Direct staff to prepare an in-depth cost analysis comparing the cost of closing the jail vs.
maintaining the statns quo.

2. Hold public hearings within the county to obtain public input into the concept of closing the
jail.

3. Act on the information gained as a result of these activities to do what is best for Sierra County.

REQUEST FOR RESPONSES
Pursuant to Penal code section 933.05, the grand jury requests responses as follows:
From the following individuals:

Auditor, The Hon. Van Maddox

Sheriff, The Hon. John Evans

Mr. Tim Beals

From the following governing bodies:

Sierra County Board of Supervisors

Sierra County Grand Jury 9



Q0 -] O LR I L P e

10

Review of Jail and Law Enforcement Facilities

'The governing bodies indicated above should be aware that the comment or response of
the governing body must be conducted subject to the notice, agenda and open meeting
requirements of the Brown Act.

Reports issued by the Civil Grand Jury do not identify individuals interviewed. Penal
Code Section 929 requires that reports of the Grand Jury not contain the name of any

person or facts leading to the identity of any person who provides information to the
Civil Grand Jury.

Sierra County Grand Jury 10



LI O 01 9np 23042400 3)qRop spnjout pajsy SYnys 2y j

‘Sadn) mau fo Suuioay 'L

‘S O 10 AMP-U0 SO/ 7 240Y 01 S10LD 01 ap Sivad ¢ oyt 240 JYS O/D

U1 2514 JI2UIT © U23Qq SOY 2421 ] Yo 4ad saulyl ¢ 01 7] AJONSR SYiYs BU0] SAN0Y @ 24D OSIY 243Y] L2AdMOY ‘SUO] SAN0Y 7T AJjp4ouad
2417 SHIYS KNP SUOTDIUNULOI-SUONIILI00 241 9J0N "Sinad 7107 B 1107 0107 s4024 10f ypuow 1ad ‘(awy-rivd pup swin-jinf) s4vatfjo
SUOIIDITUAUHOD-SUONIDLAOD SV [J2A §D (SapinBa4 pup §2442524) sffiiays Aindap Aq auop a8v.42400 jo(morpdsip fo sifiys smoys 1517
‘sapnpayos isvd Suimeiaad £q jsanbat Kinf puva £107-7107 424 supag uyopr fiiays 4q £107 G244 L7 P2y wo pajidwos uoyvutiofuy

FI11 69 YL 8L 9¢ £6 96 ¢6 801 Il 08 LL G
O/0 e Q/0 (0)8] /D (O]}8) 0/ 0/0 /D 0/ O/0 O/0 0/0
Ot L1 (4! L 01 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 10T
Ammdacy | Amdag Andsq | Andag fmdagy | Aindaq | Aindaq | Aandacr | Aindaq | dndaq | Andaq | Aindag | Aimdaq
8901 88 98 8 99 £6 96 6 801 I 08 LL e
1V v v [(\4 v v nv v v v Hv v Ik
ObL 29 1L £e 9 99 89 1] Li 14 35 £9 09
O/ (078 O 0/0 00 QD 0/0 0O/D O 0O 0/0 Q/0 0/0
81 ¢l €1 r 0 I 61 0t s 1 S A 14 1102
Amdaq | Andog | Amdeq | Andeg | Snde | Kndaq | Lindaqq | Amdaqy | Adeqq | Aindaqq | Amdaqg | Andaq | Anda
) €8 ¥8 LL 9 L9 L8 144] 6 - 79 £9 gL L
{1A:4 v nv 1k v v v v v v v v v
9cL 19 IL g9 59 09 ¥9 0L [4:] L9 £9 £ 9
/0 0/0 /0 070} 0/0 Q/D 0O/D 0/D 0/D 0/D Q0D Q0 0/
8L Tl ¥ -9 0 L [ I 14 6 31 S I 0102
Amdagy | Lindagg Andagg nds] Amdoz | Andag | Andaq | Aindoq | Andagg | Amdaqg { Lindaqg | Andeqy | Andsg
L8 tL SL CL €9 L9 $9 1L 99 18 3¢ 69
154 v v v v v v v 182 9L TV v 14 v
SR ] | Jequiada(] | lequiaaop | f2qoia() | Jequiaidag | 1sndmy Ay auny ABA judyy | yompy [ Awmnigs | Atenuef | e

I#ILNHAWHOV.LLV




Alenuue gjjeo Xelw (gozz sapuey yojedsip ples osje Jueys

el £, AUNoD BHSIS Ul 1aym 9504} Jo ¢ pajewnss Aay ] ‘Jef Ajunos) epeAsp Ul 9S0U) Sapnpul siu}

‘saew sfielaae g smoys uswipedsq s yuays ayl 210z 1eak Jepusie) “Aep Jad sejewiy) om) pabelaie ZL/LL0Z Ul 1BY) W PIO) JUBUS
SR

e bt il o)

Ha

ael Ajleq
560} 'SIA [2)0)
gae

: afineg LLO'el wa

a1l Alleg
S e10Y
A | shep
- SorBUiuf

yojedsiq g |ig[ 4no S201A88 Uojedsi(] pue
Bunelado jo 1500 1er HuiInInosINo Jo 1509

Z# INFWHOVLLY



o R

= ND Ce ] Oy LN

11

12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19

20

21
22

23

24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31

32
33
34
35
36
37

The Building Nepartment and the Law

SIERRA COUNTY FOSTERS A DISRESPECT OF THE LAW

SUMMARY

There has developed in Sierra County an unhealthy disrespect for the law surrounding
enforcement of the Building Codes. This unfortunately results from the lack of
enforcement of the building code violations. Budget cuts have contributed to this lack of
enforcement but are not the only reasons for this breakdown in the rule of law. Failure to
have a well defined policy and procedure and adherence to the Building Codes have
coniributed to this problem as well.

BACKGROUND

Sierra County has made some decisions in the past that have resulted in two levels of law
enforcement as regards the Building Code adopted by the County. The law abiding
citizens are trying to comply with the Building Codes of Sierra County. At the same time
they see others that are ignoring and even flaunting the Building Codes and getting away
with the viclations and no sanctions for violating the law. This breeds contempt of the
law which is not good! There are complete houses that have been erected and the people
who built them living in those houses without suffering any penalties for this flagrant
violation of the Building Code.

APPROACH

We received many complaints regarding the lack of the County exercising its power to
stop and sanction people for flagrantly violating the County Building Codes.

DISCUSSION

In an effort to make it possible for people to build homes in Sierra County time has been
allowed so persons can build as they are able to do so. Some people live in other arcas
and are trying to build vacation or retirement homes. Others need time to accumulate
resources to build their home. Taking into consideration the weather constraints and the
remoteness of Sierra County, the County has relaxed the time tables that are prescribed in
the Uniform Building Code. This has allowed people to spend years constructing homes
or even doing remodeling and/or additions to existing homes. This relaxation is the result
of decisions by the Sierra County Board of Supervisors to allow it.

By means of comparison, the Uniform Building Code has strict timelines. After issuance
of a building permit, the pexmit holder has 180 days to start work and if no inspection is

- done within 180 days the permit is void. Also typically the project associated with the

permit must be completed within 360 days. If it is not completed the permit will lapse,
although a one-time permit extension is typically allowed if a payment of 2 of the
original permit fee is paid.

Sierra County Grand Jury 10



W

~1 v W

10
11
12
13

14
15
16
17
18
19
20

21
22

23
24

25
26

27
28
29
30

31
32
33

34

35

The Building Department and the Law

The problem arises because the county building department has not instituted policies and
procedures that allow for the following of permits. It is difficult for the staff to determine
where builders are in the process which culminates with a final inspection and the
issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy.

As aresult, permiis are on the books somewhere that have never been finalized. This
results in houses that may not comply with the Uniform Building Code and thus could be
unsafe putting the life and safety of the residents of those houses at risk.

The County issues approximately 100 permits per vear and after a few vears many
permits fall through the cracks and are never completed.

The next problem that arises is the construction of structires without permits or
violations of code that may have a STOP WORK NOTICE ( Red Tagged) issued. Again
the County Building Department does not have a policy and procedure to address what
happens after these issues are noted.

This is really where a significant problem arises. We have citizens that are abiding with
the law and going through the process of paying for permits and building according to the
codes. Then we have scofflaws that are building in some cases complete homes without
obtaining the required permits and paying the fees. This is breeding contempt for the law
and of the County of Sierra for not imposing the law equally on all the people of Sierra
County. It continues to irritate the people who live by the law on a daily basis as they
drive by these illegal structures.

As to this problem the County has two options:
1. Uniformly enforce the building codes or

2. Abandon the pretense of having a bulldmg code for structures in Sierra
County.

Common sense would say that option #1 should be the course that the County should
pursue.

The County through the Board of Supervisors can make exceptions to the building code
for Sierra County by adopting the Uniform Building Code with certain exceptions. Many
Cities and Counties do this every time a new code is issued. We did not research whether
the County has or has not done this.

We were able to determine that the Building Department has started pursuing the process
to address the concerns of non-compliance with the Building Codes but to date have not
been able to complete the process.

FINDINGS

Sierra County Grand Jury 11



O O oe =N L s LN e

— = =
(R

13
14
15
16
17
18
19

20
21
22
23
24

25
26

27

The Building Department and the Law

F1. The County needs to make the decision to-promulgate policies and procedures to
maintain an efficient method to follow all building permits. This is needed to
assure that all building permits are finalized and Certificates of Occupancy are
1ssued. There must be a guarantee that the buildings in Sierra County comply with
the Building Codes at the time of completion.

F2. The County needs to develop policies and procedures in conjunction with the
District Attomey to enforce compliance with the building codes and to exercise the
sanctions available to the County so as to make compliance a priority. Ultimately,
if a landowner or leascholder fails to comply, the county must have the structure
destroyed at the expense of the landowner.

RECOMMENDATIONS

R1. There are inexpensive software options to efficiently follow the permit process from
issuance to completion and to issue reports of outstanding permits. The use of the
software and development of the policies and procedures to implement a method to
track all permits should be a high priority. It is recommended that ZP Systems or
Permit-LV could help address this issue and the cost could be covered by an
additional fee of $6.00 to $10.00 per building permit application. Please see
APPENDIX A and B

R2. The faithful and equal application of the Building Codes upon all landowners and
leaseholders is an absolute requirement to maintain the respect of the rule of law.
This requires the development of the policies and procedures in conjunction with
the Disirict Attorney’s office to enforce the Building Code uniformly on all
landowners and leaseholders.

REQUEST FOR RESPONSES
Pursuant to Pénal code section 933.05, the grand jury requests responses as follows:

From the following individuals:
»  Mr, Tim Beals
= District Attorney Larry Alien
From the following goveming bodies:
= Board of Supervisors

The governing bodies indicated above should be aware that the comment or response of
the governing body must be conducted subject to the notice, agenda and open meeting
requirements of the Brown Act.

Sierra County Grand Jury 12



Lh Ld fd —

—
O D0~

11

12

13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20

The Building Department and the Law

Reports issued by the Civil Grand Jury-do not identify individuals interviewed. Penal Code Section 929 requires that
reports of the Grand Jury not contain the name of any person or facts leading to the identity of any person who
provides information to the Civil Grand Jury.

APPENDIX A

Thanks for your interest in ZonePro. [ have attached a price list. Typical installation costs
are around $600 and typical annual maintenance is around $500.

Person County {(Sam Hobgood) and Granville County (Tracy Brown) in NC are two that
spring to mind that would be references for our current software: ZonePro SQL.

You have no doubt found our web site where lots of information is available but just in
case the address is: www.zoneprosoftware.com.

Please let me know if Sfou have any questions.
Thanks,

Steve Schulz
ZP Systems, Inc.

Sierra County Grand Jury 13



The Building Department and the Law

SYSTEMS

ZONEPRO SQL SPECIAL PRICING

ZonePro SQL Initial Cost Annua) Cost
Base Module $360 5360
Zoning Module §25 $25
Appeals Module §25 $25
Misc Fee Module $20 $20
Building Module $70 §70
Contractor Module $25 $25
Housing Module $50 $50
Rental Licensing $20 $20
Photo Module $25 $25
Planning Module $10 $10
Fire Module $30 $30
Compare Module $300 $30

Installation Services
Parcel data property merge: No charge for first 4,000 parcels then $50 per 1,000 records

On-site installation & training: $350 to $800 depending on travel expenses

Additional Information
* Pricing includes access to free product upgrades and unlimited technical support.

* The annual costs begin in year two and are billed the same month as the installation cccurred.

* The Base module is required for all configurations. Additional modules are optional depending
on your needs. The optional modules can be added at any time.

* The Contact File, Security, and ZP Toolbox Modules are included in the Base Module for
ZonePro SQL. The Base Module also includes the internet and SQL hosting fee.

* ZonePro is sold as a site license. There are no per user or networking fees.

Sierra County Grand Jury 14



[a—

.._..
OO NIy W N

11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23

The Building Department and the Law

APPENBIX B

Thank you for inquiring about Permit-LV, our permitting and inspections management
solution.

The base price for a single-user for your jurisdiction's armual volume is $2899. Annual
unlimited technical support is $999 per year.

Our mobile mspections system is $999 per copy (will run on any ordinary laptop with
Windows XP or higher)

For your convenience, I am attaching our 1 page "Quick Facts" brochure and some
additional informatior on Traveling Permit-LV and our company.

When you are ready, we would like to offer you a demo via the Internet. This will give
you the opportunity to see all the features and benefits in action.

If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to call or email me.

Again, thank you for your inquiry. We look forward to being able to assist you.
Jean Vallee

WindoWare Inc

(800) 577-9374

ivallee@windowareinc.com

Sierra County Grand Jury 15



The Building Departrnent and the Law

/indoWare Inc

Why Should | Select WindoWare As WMy Boftware Vendor?

Dhoog youy doparmant oparas axaatly ke wour sourtstpant’s: in another jurisdiction? Probably
mot i you B3 T one-sire-fite-all” cods enforcemnent sofiwere Tor your mission oitical
daga, it maght not ft you oxscty eithar.

WindoWars has takan o diffsrent appioach to providing sokstione Eor your parmiting and
ispecticns menagement aofwane nasds. Ws recognizs that eash prisdiction has opsaling
proceduras that mayr be elightly $o moderately diffseent from swven nesghbonng municpalitias.
Code Erforcament depiarmsnis like yoore generally cupham 0% of #is ebdeme inlormalion no
mEtter whers you are, fie the ather 1078 of data that diffsremtstez ong jurisdictien from
another. Youy deparrment regpands 1o esey thal ars impoaant o yng snd Your mans)sis
and mast mpontangly, s Sizens of your communiy. Soms fzsuss ans sxtramealy imporkant i
ona urediction, bt may ok be s mportar scmewhors eles.

¥WindoWare spacializes in making your eote enforcement anforars syzom match what
iz important 1o you. ¥ou are abls o continwe “buzinz: ez weusl” withont heving to '
rownite your basic cperating precadures 1o match your zofbhwars. Thet includss which
kinds of pormils you iasus, the kinds of inspoctions you do, ang tho kind of roparts you
noed 1o pariomm your duties affoctiveby.

We tailer the last 1056 of our softwars to sonform to the way you do “business™. It's
bean = part of onr nsiailstion and servics policy from the beginning. And there i= no
‘wxtrs charge - it sl incfuded a8 part of yaur insgslation.

find it doasn’ stop wih the nstalafion. Changinng neads and reguitsments are SOmImon
ooourmencEs. Our suppent poficias anompaes both tachnieat oporationst support and progzam
modHicatione when you pesd it

: e Bores workedd fong anvd hawd, ower 21 weare, io be one of s mosl reapoeiad, aendes
orieetad conponics n tha: coumtng. And wie weard yous i he sbeshealy confidant I owr
dedization to 1) delivar sofhwars that mastz your neads and 2} suppont yos and your ataff
Aftoraminds

When pon seahssts softears seluticns, we koo yow want 12 o surs Yool &g cbrparing
“appise o applss’. Dur praposele ars ahyays iemized and incleds svamyihing you nesd - there
are o hidden chames & aunpiss you lais. -

To learmn mons shout aur real-ime demonetations snd our sffordabls suits of cods
arfnscamant soitwars solutions, pleass vigt our web 3is 2 v windowarsine. com or calf
o ol frse mumdbey - [A00 FFr-9874.

218 Winclzes Castle Dr., Mawpan Mows, WA 23508 - PO, Box 22466, Nk 22868
Yoins: (S} BT854 Foe (757 870707 E-magh pwalloafiwindowanaine coen

Sierra County Grand Jury 16



The Building Department and the Law

Permit - LV Fact Sheet

Pepmithing and Inspections Tracking Soffware Sclutions

What owr uisers say aboil WindoWare's software and support...

Ut works! Thavks! Ve are one of the Few offfces in fhe cily Wit compuier
oragrams that work for us, and thaf can be modfed as owr needs chenge.™
Sy dames, ity of Falrfax

Fermit-Lv's Features and Benefils includes:

Cresicned especiatly for smatler foealities that iesoe Z00 - 5000 permids a yoor,
Destgned from the ground wp for Microsoft Windows - making it easy i lsami
Tracks applications for 3l bpes of pemmits for sasy lookup.

Track approvals from other deparments S0 you know whens an application stands.
Tracks other reguirements such as ADA compliancs, ashieaios parfiicaliion, efe.
Automatically caiculates permit fees hased on your locafty's fes schedules.
Prints the pemit for you - as meny coplas &8s wou pesd.

Tratks alf requests for Inspactions so you can quickly prind your schadule.
Prinks your inspeciion fiokels - single Sckets or afl fiekets for a speified dats.
Frints femporary and pemsnent Carfificates of Cooupsnicy

héany standard reports can be viewsd or prnted in seconds including:

P RGO TR ER R AR

¥ Activity for 3 specific month + Schvity for o date range - 1 day, 1week, ste
+ Census Brreat roport (4064) + Daily Revenue Report

+ Pemiit history for a given addess  + Inepection historiss for pammits.
« Outstanding inspection viclalions " And mors...
# Mumerous options allow you fo cusiomize the system to it your locality's neede:
+ Fes schedufes can be baged on work value and perfitem or square ool
« Mulitiple User-Defined tables ke Project Codes, Nelghborhoode, ste.
+ 3 fevels of security
« And mora...
Treck inspecticns for code violations-high weeds, jmk cars & other viclations.
& Keep complets informaiion on contractors:
+ The esus! - name, sddress, phione numibars, condact nans,
+ Stefe icenee and iocal licenee(s) expiration dates.
+ Types of permits quaiiied for. :
¥ Yene to.date valte of pemis tatien ot generator]
+ M e '
& Kesp ireck of pending pemEts and 0% - includes 3 Beler fle for
+ Reviening applications awsiting appeovalis)
=+ Resdesing expirsd temporary Cerfiicales of Cooipancy.
& Revigw the inspection History for any pemilt nstanty
ook up pesmils by pemiil #, address, cwner's name, or e map muevber
Ard many mors festres 1o sssist you in managing your crhtica! mfermstion.

Call WindoWare Today And Put { * 5??‘“g3?

These Solutions To Work For Youtl

Nenw itd
A fanaiic
stoiafion leffer

Sierra County Grand Jury 17



The Building Department and the Law

Another Time-Saving Solution...

Traveling Permit-IT
Mobite Software Sofutions
For Inspectors In The Field
Mo More Tickets of Paper To Heap Tk OF - You gan Buw
it 28 bahing.. .
You Have Gomplete ndormation AR The Time - Mo Mot
shorthand or hand withen nokes on papes. .

oL ra Feady To Go Indust Seoonde - Goommast i pour
erterank, tell Travaling Pamni-T who you ase ard your
inspections am gutomaiialy downlosded fa yourfeptan..,

Wk D Instandly Reviow 83 Pravious Inapaations - ¥ ou
aways knowe ehat inspedions hava already been oompiee
and what commants warg mada - fght in the fiald...

o S Inguire About Ay Open Paamit - Induding perritanat

20 your ngpaiiiong list ..,

Yorr o Pring Youy Inapecting Tickets With Feauis and
Commments - Bohtin the Sald.,.

Wtk Gars Bester Neow Fesusets - vou heve &l the iformiztion
aesdywihiyou...

Einiah Your Gay With Bpse - Uplosd your inspeelion rawifis
e eirnarks N secomds.. Yo cn aveE) uba piur wirdass
maksark B arsmst S Back o he olica.

Eirdnate Bedumdant Dots Endry - Davar feelyps again...

Ses How This Time-Saving Sclutien Can Work For Youl - Call {800) 577-9374 Today!

WindnWare recommends cost-effective
Tablet PC's for Traveling Permit-fT.

Tablet PC's have the versatlity to be your
computer in the field AND in the office!

Handwilting and Speach Recoanition are

standard 1o Bmwm your job even easler!

18

Sierra County Grand Jury



Lo B

SO -] O LA

14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21

22

24
25

26

27
28
29

Addressing Emploves Concerns

SIERRA COUNTY NEEDS A BETTER WAY TO ADDRESS
EMPLOYEE CONCERNS

SUMMARY

SIERRA COUNTY is a small county, in fact, the second smallest county by population
in California. Sierra County is so small and all of the administrators work so closely
together, that the employees are afraid to report work place issues that arise from time to
time. The employee’s fears of reprisals, well founded or not, for reporting issues or
concerns has resulted in these concerns not being addressed by the County. This failure
can have negative effects on County operations, costs, and employee behavior. After
some research, we have found at least one option that may exist to resolve this concern.
There may be other options of which we are unaware.

BACKGROUND

Presently the Auditor is the repository for such work place issues/concerns. Many, if not
all, employees are aware of how closely the administrators work through the year to solve
the County financial and operational issues. The employees are worried that the
propinquity of these relationships will not allow for the maintenance of the anonymity
needed to prevent reprisals from bosses or other employees if the source of the issue/
concern becomes common knowledge. This problem has been expressed to the Grand
Jury by a number of individuals. This number was large enough to warrant this
investigation.

APPROACH

In reviewing the inquiries, issues and concerns that the Grand Jury received from
employees of the County it became evident that the employees came to the Grand Jury
because they did not feel safe following identified grievance procedures.

DISCUSSION

Upon looking closer at the inquiries, issues and concerns submitted, it became apparent
that employees were coming to the Grand Jury because they felt they had no place else to
go where they could feel safe in presenting there issues and concerns.

= The employees do have a place to go when they have work condition inquiries,
issues or concerns
— First, they can contact the Shop Steward from the employee’s union.

— Secondly, if they are not satisfied with the Shop Steward, they can then go
directly to the union for help.

»  When they have inquiries, issues and or concerns regarding non-union related
conditions, they feel at risk when reporting these items to the Human Resources
Department. The department heads work closely together in solving the many

Sierra County Grand Jury 19



(= R B e A

11
12
13

14
15

16
- 17
18
19

20
21
22
23
24

25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33

34

35
36
37
38
39

40
41

Addressing Employee Concerns

" financial and operational problems that Sierra County faces on a regular basis.
While there is no evidence to support the employee fears, it is an understendable
inference. This has left the employees no path to safely express their inquiries, -
183u€s Or Concerns.

The employees’ ability to safely express their inquiries, issues and or concemns can
contribute to the improvement of Sierra County by identifying problems that could be
corrected. This could contribute to the employees helping make the County a better
place to work and live. '

The Grand Jury has contacted Nevada County to see if they would be open to acting
as an independent Ombudsman and repository for the employees of Sierra County.
Their response was very positive provided Sierra County developed policies and
procedures that were not in conflict with the policies and procedures of Nevada
County.

FINDINGS

Fl.

F2.

F3.

The employees of Sierra County do have a place to report issues and concerns
regarding working conditions that are covered by the existing union contract. They
have the ability to contact the Shop Steward and, if they are unable fo get
satisfaction can go directly to the union.

The employees do not have any safe place to report work place, non-union
conditions, issues and concerns without the fear that by reporting these concerns
they could be placing their employment at risk and exposing themselves to other
reprisals. An example of these types of issues would be the reporting of percerved
or real misconduct by fellow employees or supervisors.

This part of the Grand Jury Report was submitted to the County Auditor and to the
Director of Health and Human Services. The Director pointed out two factual
errors in this section of the report. We have attached this notification of error to our
document. Since receiving this notification, I have spoken to both the District
Attorey and the Director of Health and Human Services. It does appear that the
District Attorney is Sierra County’s Personnel Director unless there is some
conflict, at which time the work moves to the County Auditor. However, the Grand
Jury received a number of employee complaints from employees who believed
incorrectly that the Auditor was the personnel director. Obviously, despite the best
efforts of the county to properly inform their employees of the District Attorney’s
appointed position, few employees understand the bureaucracy. I did speak to the
District Attorney about this issue. The District Attorney has no personnel files.
which reside in the employee’s department and, to some extent, with the County
Auditor. The existing system does not appear capable of protecting employee’s
confidentiality.

The system in place in Sierra County to address employee work place concerns
appears to be a Potemkin Village type of human resources system. We believe that

Sierra County Grand Jury 20



10
11
12

13
14

15

16
17
18
19

20
21
22

23
25

26

27

Addressing Employee Concerns

this system was cstablished with the best of intentions but fails in execution. While
we appreciate the notification of factual errors, further review leads us to believe
that there is no need to change the following recommendation. Sometimes
perception is more important actual fact.

RECOMMENDATIONS

The retention of a neutral ombudsman with the power and responsibility to address
the inquiries, issues and concerns of the employees of Sierra County. The
ombudsman would be working directly for the Board of Supervisors and would be
required to report to the Board of Supervisors on a regular basis. The ombudsman
would be charged with maintaining the privacy of those employees who reported
the apparent problem and addressing the employee’s concerns.

REQUEST FOR RESPONSES
Pursuant to Penal code section 933.05, the grand jury requests responses as follows:

From the following governing bodies:
= Sierra County Auditor
m  Director of Health and Human Services
m - Sierra County Board of Supervisors

The governing bodies indicated above should be aware that the comment or response of
the governing body must be conducted subject to the notice, agenda and open meeting
requirements of the Brown Act.

Reports issued by the Civil Grand Jury do not identify individuals interviewed. Penal Code Section 929 requires that
reports of the Grand Jury not contain the name of any person or facts leading to the identity of any person who
provides information to the Civil Grand Jury.

Sierra County Grand Jury 21



SIERRA COUNTY Human Services

U Social Services QO Mental Health/Drug/Alcohol (3 Health Dept.

PO, Box 1019 PO, Box 265 PO, Box 7

Loyaiton, CA 95118 704 Mill Street 202 Front Street

202 Frant Street Loyalion, CA 96118 Loyalton, CA 96118 Janice Maddox
530-993-6720 530-993-6746 530-993-6700 Director

Fax 530-993-6767 Fax 530-993-6759 Fax 530-993-6750

J Downieville, GA 93936
P.O. Box 38
22 Maiden Lane
530-289-3711
CPS530-289-3720
Fax 530-289-3716

une 17, 2013

Sierra County Grand Jury
P.0. Box 476
Downieville, CA 95936

Dear Sierra Co‘unty Grand Jury:

Thank you for taking the time to meet with me and give me the opportunity to address concerns. Please
find enclosed two corrections of factual errors provided in response to the initial Sierra County Grand
Jury report dated June 17, 2013,

Regards
mwy&&% %//éx

/ ;,Janlce Maddox, Director

Enclosure

People Helping People




Janice Maddoy, Director
Sierra County Health and Human Services
Correction of Factual Errors - Juna 17, 2013

CORRECTION OF FACTUAL ERRORS
SIERRA COUNTY GRAND JURY REPORT
6-17-2013

CORRECTION 1

Page 19 states “Presently the Auditor is the repository for such work place issues/concerns.” Actually,
that is not correct on multiple levels. Some time ago the personnel functions for the county were
divided between the District Attorney and the Auditor. The Auditor's main functions refated to
personnel are processing payroll, and routine functions while the District Attorney’s office handies
grievances, disciplinary actions, etc. Where there is a conflict, such in a criminal case where the DA is the
prosecuting attorney and so can’t handle an employee issue, the issue goes to County Counsel or
outside counsel.

The current Sierra County Personne! Code does not list the Auditor as in the chain of command for
grievances, but refers employees to department heads and states if they don’t get redress there they

may file their complaint with the Clerk-Recorder to put the issue before the Board of Supervisors (p.

117, Section 3.11.020.

It is standard practice for agencies to provide multiple options for employees who want to express
concerns to avoid allegations that employees had no viable option for registering a complaint. For
example, if there is only one person identified as a go-to person for a complaint an employee can state
they were denied their ahility to address an issue where the identified person may be the persen they
want to complain against. Employers have to shaw they provided adequate options and did not limit the
ability to complain to one person within a given command structure. This is particularly true as pertains
to sensitive issues such as ailegations of sexual harassment.

The current official county harassment policy that is part of the Employee Handbook explicitly states
employees can contact their Department Manager, District Attorney, County Coupnsel, the Auditor, the

Department of Fair Employment and Housing or the Equal Employment Opportunity Commission (EEQC)

{p. 41 et Seq.).

Additionally, regulations state employers must post varicus notices in employee commeon areas. At HHS
there is a notice delineating employee protections for “whistleblowing” which refers employees to
contact the California State Attorney General's Whistleblower Hotline. There is a notice titled “Employee
Rights Under the National Labor Relations Act” which directs employees to toll-free numbers to contact
in the event they feel their rights or the rights of others have been violated in addition to other notices -
and contact information related to various categories of empioyee protection.

In addition, as you state, the employees have a shop steward and union representation. There is

nowhere | am aware of where employees are directed to contact the Auditor as their sole option for
expressing a concern.

10F2




Janice Maddox, Director
Sierra County Health and Human Sarvices
Correction of Factual Errors — June 17, 2013

CORRECTION 2

Page 20 - Should be noted that retaliation in response to an employee grievance is not allowed. The
county has non-retaliation policies and non-discrimination policies throughout the employee handbook.
The Equal Employment Opportunity Commission (EEQC) website states the following:

Al of the laws we enforce make it illegal to fire, demote, harass, or otherwise “retaliate”
against people (applicants or employees) becauss they filed a charge of discrimination,
because they complained to their employer or other covered entity about discrimination on
the job, or because they participated in an employment discrimination proceeding (such as an
investigation or lawsuit}.. The law forbids retaliation when it comes to any aspect of
employment, including hiring, firing, pay, job assignments, promotions, layoft, training, fringe
benefits, and any other term or condition of employment.

Having non-retaliation policies in place is a condition generzlly tied to receipt of state and federal
funding. Employers are required to show they have given employees multiple avenues for registering
complaints or concerns, that they have informed them of their right to contact such entities as the EEQOC
and that retaliation is illegal.

At the time this was written, | was unable to download the Sierra County Employee Handbook but the
information stated above is verifiable and the Sierra County Employee Handbook should he available
through the Sierra County Clerk-Recorder’s office and other entities. Employees are given a copy of the
Employee Handbook at the time of hire. This information may also be in the Sierra County Personnel
Code which should also be available through the Clerk-Recorder’s office.

20F2




B hoo—

—
[sv BN o REeL RN e MRV

11
12
13
14

15

16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26

27

28
29
30
31
32

33

34

35

36
37

Schools Report

Report on Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District

SUMMARY

The schools in Sierra County are important to everyone who lives here and everyone is
concerned about both the financial needs of the school district and the education provided
to our children. This concern has resulted in perceptions based upon actions by the
school officials and the school board. The perception is that many decisions are being
made out of public view and that public input, although requested, is not seriously
considered. 1tis felt that meetings are held to make decisions, but in fact, the decisions
have already been made, possibly in secret. The grand jury seeks to determine to the best
of its ability if there is truth behind this perception and shed some light on any possible
causes. Additionally, the district faces financial problems with diminishing revenues and
Increasing expenses.

BACKGROUND

The two issues that we addressed were brought to our attention as a result of complaints
about the District decision to close of the District office in Sierraville and moving it to
Loyalton. It was just a few years ago that the District decided that it was cost effective to
move the office to Sierraville. Now the District has decided that the move to Sierraville
is no longer cost effective. So the District spent dollars that are in short supply in Sierra
County to move the District offices to Sierraville and now they want to spend more
scarce doilars to move the District offices, this time to Loyalton. There seemed to be
little notice to the community before the decision was made and the community felt like
it was left out of the loop in the decision making process. The need to efficiently use the
dollars atlotted to the district for the education of our children is of utmost importance.

APPROACH

The investigation was conducted from September 2012 thru May 2013 by attending
school board meetings and interviewing various members to the school staff. There was
research into the financial status of the District addressing the availability and sources of
aid for the District. During our investigation we found all members of the staff and the
Board of Education to be enthusiastic, dedicated, hard working, and caring.

DISCUSSION
There are a number of factors that affect the problems that the school district faces.
SIZE AND GEOGRAPHICAL AREA

The school district is one of the more unigue districts in California. Itis a
relatively small district when we are talking about enrollment with only 390 students

22



o B U B e

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
33
32
33
34
35
36
37
38
39
40
41
42

Schools Report

located in six schools at two locations Downieville and Loyalton. But when we talk
about geographical size it is quite large in that it covers more than 1000 square miles. As
for enrollment it is at it lowest point in many years. These facts, while unique, are also
important when we look at the school district and its finances because they increase the
cost of running the schools disproportionately when compared to other school districts
with approximately the same enrollment.

FINANCES
WHERE DOES THE MONEY COME FROM AND WHERE DOES IT GO?

The majority of school’s dollars come from the state budget. In 2010-11, state
dollars accounted for more than half {55.1 percent} of the $56.4 billion in schools’
revenues for the entire state of California. The majority of these funds were for general
purposes, while the remainder supported specific K-12 programs, including class size .
reduction and child nutrition. Tn 2010-11, local sources — primarily local property tax
dollars — accounted for less than one-third {29.9 percent) of schools’ revenues, and
federal monies provided more than one out of eight school dollars (13.5 percent). Just
1.5 percent of schools’ dollars came from state lottery revenue, California schools’
reliance on the state budget for the majority of their support reflects the passage of
Proposition 13 in 1978, which shifted most of the cost of public schools from the local
property tax roll to the state’s General Fund. Prior to Proposition 13, local property taxes
provided the largest share of California schools’ revenue.

As for our school district, the records for 2010 from California Watch show total
expenditures of $5.7 million dollars. This translated inte $13,365 expenditure per
student. While this places the district in the top 25% of districts with the highest
expenditures per student, it does not allow the district to provide the services that other
districts of stmilar levels of per student expenditures are able to provide because the
school facilities are:

1. much larger than needed for the present day enrollment which means a higher

per student cost for maintenance.

2. the facilities are much older and in need of repair at a higher dollar level than

most districts.

3. the facilities are located approximately 48 miles apart which adds significant

travel time to every repair. _

4. The large service area of the district results in extremely high busing costs.

From a high point in 2010, there has been a decline in funding for the district.
The state has cut school funding over 20% as of October 2011. Additionally, the district
will lose another $500,000.00 from the Federal Government with the end of the Secure
Rural Schools grants,

This is leading to deficit spending and the depletion of reserve funds. The district
by the end of fiscal year 2012 has a 62% reserve. Projected reserves are estimated to
decline to 35% in 2013; 24% in 2014; and 4.5% in 2015.

23



S A R Y —

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20

Schoals Report

The district has been applying for hardship funds for the needed repairs to the
facilities but has not been very successful in getting them. There has been only one
successful request and the question remains whether the district will actually receive the
funds or not.

The district tried to get a General Obligation Bond passed in 2010 but was
unsuccessful.

Bond & Parcel Tax Elactions
Election results since the mid- 1980‘5 through November 2012, based on the best ava;lab!e information.

:Sterra -Pluras Joint Umf ed

Proposed | Vote
Date of | Election Propased Parcel in Vote :
Election | Type Purpose Bond | Tax Favor | Passed | Required | *Students |

; Rancvate
'exlstlng o
sehaol -
buzldmgs
o rupdate’ i
4 |60 Bond utili_&ias,-.;’; © 145,000,000
sciehce: [T L
,:laboratonas, LT
Awindows - foou

lsrmol wo | s | e

-A..Sﬂ&EF.b Schoni DIstrIct Bnnd and Tax Eiecti )

:Sourt:e EdSource

The fact that the district has no outstanding bonds further restricts its ability to qualify for
hardship funding.

WHAT ABOUT OUR TEACHERS

Since the district has declining revenue, it has been unable to provide the required
salaries for the teachers. The California State Education Code §41372 stipulates that
teacher salarics should be equal to 55% of the school expenditures. The district has been
unable to maintain this level for teacher salaries.

We should thank all of our teachers for their continuing dedication and sacrifice
in teaching our children when they are considerably under paid when compared to the
rest of the teacher throughout the state.

24



RN e R R e IR ol S e

[y

. Schools Report

| Statewide Average |
for i

Unified School

District Districts

Lowest Dffered | £32,293 $39,856 |

BA + 60 {Step 10}

L 549,184 $61,849 |
‘Dﬁamdi ] B

Highest Offered $68,147 $80,180 |

Average Paid® $51,837 |

punts do'

2 Bachelor of Arts

As can be seen by the table above, our teachers deserve our support in every way possible
‘to keep them here is our district.

WHAT ELSE HAS BEEN DONE OR CAN BE DONE TO HELP THE
FINANCES?

The district has done the following to cut costs:
1. Some school programs are being reduced.

25



—
O ND OO YO B WD R =

B L0 L0 LI L LD L L) LI LI LD BRI RO B RO DN B IO M B DD e e b b et b e et e

Schools Report

2. "Two school consolidation resolutions have been approved by the Board of
Education and it is hoped that this will save some funds.
a. Combining the middle school and high school.
b. Moving the district office from Sierraville to Loyalton is hoped to save

funds.

3. The current superintendent for both the Sierra County Office of Education
and the Sierra Plumas Joint Unified School Distriet has retired effective
this year and it was decided to make that position a % time position.

What can be done lies with the citizens of the district and the importance they place
upon education. There does not appear to be any source of funding that is left outside the
district with the potential to solve this funding problem. Therefore, if the citizens want to
continue the excellent education results that have been provided by the district
historically, they will have to pay for it themselves.

Those education resulis have been a gradual increase in the Acadermic Performance
Index to today where it resides around 818. This is above the state goal of 800. A good
education is absolutely necessary for success in life and only we as parents can ultimately
provide that education for our children.

HOW OPEN IS THE PROCESS OF THE DECISION MAKEING IN THE
DISTRICT?

BOARD MEETING:

Another problem that came to our attention was the impression held by many
citizens that there was not enough transparency in the decision making process by the
Board of Education and the district administration. Observers of the Board meetings felt
that there was insufficient discussion over any issue before a vote was taken. This left
the observers with the following concerns:

1. Are there violations of the Brown Act given there was so little discussion
before votes?

2. 'The observers felt that it was difficult to understand what was either being
approved or not.

3. The observers didn’t understand the advantages or disadvantages of the
decisions.

4, The observers felt that they were unsure of the position of each of the

board members on any matter before the board.

Novice attendees at Board meetings were not able to discover what was available
to help them become more knowledgeable about the process and the material to be
covered in any meeting. |

There is information on the district website but it is not easily found. The website
seems to require a certain level of persistence to find anything useful. This information,

26



Nalie R B o SR AN R S

[FSRFLIR UL IR UV OL I USROS B (S I 0 B ST B S I S I AT B I A I N el e e e e e
o SV TG VS N L RN - B - T B e O N SO S - I e BN T - I R SRV R R ™

. 37

38
39
40

41
42

Schools Repaort

if reviewed prior to attending a meeting, would give the novice attendee the information
allowing them to better understand the process and the materials to be covered during the
meeting.

ADVISORY MEETINGS

It was determined that the district was holding advisory meetings to which only
selected persons were invited. The meetings were confidential in nature as they were not
advertised to the public at large. The district has since discontinued these types of
meetings and have made meetings much more open and available to the public.

The indications that that the district 1s far more open than perceived is supported
by the following actions:
1. The superintendent has held open forums in Loyalton and Downieville.
2. Advisory committees were formed and met periodically with the
superintendent and reminders to attend were sent out.

3 Consolidation committees were formed and met to discuss related issues.
4, Forum topics, times and locations were published in local papers.
5 Board meeting agendas were posted on school doors and on the district
website.
THE BROWN ACT

After observing and learning the process of the board meetings and where to go to
become informed about the matters before the board, it seems that allegations of Brown
Act violations are without basis if fact. The citizens have to become more _
knowledgeable about the process. It is not an obligation of the district to do more than
they presently do regarding notices for meetings, agendas for meetings, developing
background packages for the board members. All the information is available on line at
the district website for anyone who wants to do the research.

It is unfortunate, but the citizens of Sierra County seem to let things slide until the
final vote 1s in and then they complain. District citizens need to become more involved
in the things that matter to them. Education of the citizen’s children should be at the top
of the list of issues with which these citizens should become involved.

FINDINGS

F1. The superintendent, staff and teachers are doing an outstanding job. They are
motivated, hard working, enthusiastic, dedicated and caring.

F2. The district is suffering from a lack of funding.

F3. The district could make information easier to find on the website.

F4, The citizens do not get involved carly anytime an issue arises and then complain
that they are being left out of the process.

27



W]

H
VW W

11
12

13
14
15
16

17
18

19
20

21

22
23
24
25

26
27
28

29
30
31

32

Schools Report

RECOMMENDATIONS

R1. The citizens of the district need to make sure that they thank everyone involved
with the district for their efforts.

R2. Everyone needs to help try to solve the funding issue. This could be volunteering to
help the district in it’s search for funding from private and public sources. Persons
could help develop ideas for cost saving approaches to education which do not harm
the education activity in the classroom. Others could consider advocating for a
bond measure so that the people who benefit from quality education, all people in
the district, will also help fund the district’s attempts to provide quality education.

R3. The district should work on its website to make information regarding meetings and
background packages for these meetings easier to locate.

R4.  All school board members are elected. Elected officials should have their phone
numbers and access information easily available to the citizenry. This is absolutely
necessary for the operation of a democracy. The district website should list all the
board menibers with their phone numbers and addresses.

R5. More effort must be made to attempt to raise the awareness level of the citizens
regarding issues before these become critical.

REQUEST FOR RESPONSES
Pursuant to Penal code section 933.05, the grand jury requests responses as follows:

From the following individuals:
» District Superintendent

From the following governing bodies;
»  School Board.

The governing bodies indicated above should be aware that the comment or response of
the govemning body must be conducted subject to the notice, agenda and open meeting
requirements of the Brown Act.

Reports issued by the Civil Grand Jury do not identify individuals interviewed. Penal Code Section 929 requires that
repotts of the Grand Jury not contain the name of any person or facts leading to the identity of any person who
provides information to the Civil Grand Jury.

28






